
Page 1 of 1 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

STANDING COMMITTEE MEETING 
MONDAY, JUNE 05, 2023 

5:35 PM AT CITY HALL, 220 CLAY STREET 

 

 
 
Committee meetings will begin at the time noted above with succeeding Committee meetings starting immediately 
following the conclusion of the previous meeting. Time periods for individual topics represent an estimate and is 
based on the time of completion of the previous Committee topic. 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Committee of the Whole 

1. Council Policy on Official City Proclamations.  
(15 Minutes, City Council discussion) 

Community Development Committee 

1. Open Space Policies within Subdivisions. 
(30 Minutes, Planning & Community Services Manager Karen Howard) 

Finance & Business Operations Committee 

1. Parking Permits for Downtown Municipal Lots.  
(20 Minutes, Administrative & Parking Supervisor Marcie Breitbach) 

2. FY2024 Cash Management Report. 
(10 Minutes, Controller/City Treasurer Lisa Roeding) 

Adjournment 

1



CFD 1127.22:  Council Policy – Official City Proclamations CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 2 

CFD 1127: Council Policy – Official City Proclamations  
Approved December 19, 2022 by the Cedar Falls City Council  

PURPOSE:  

To provide guidance for the submission, approval, and publishing of official city proclamations. 

POLICY:   

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to recognize important civic events and other special 

occasions with an official proclamation. 

PROCEDURES: 

1. Submission Criteria. 

A. Proclamations may be requested by: 

1). Residents of the City of Cedar Falls. 

2). Organizations with direct connections to Cedar Falls.  

3). City of Cedar Falls council members or employees. 

B. Proclamations should have a demonstrable tie to Cedar Falls, which may include significant 

accomplishments by residents, noteworthy historical anniversaries, “Year of…” 

declarations, or other special commemorations of days, weeks or months by Cedar Falls 

residents and organizations. 

C. The City of Cedar Falls reserves the right to deny any proclamation request. 

2. Proclamation Submission. 

A. Information required for an official city proclamation request are: 

1). Submitter Name (plus title / organizational affiliation as appropriate). 

2). Submitter Mailing Address and E-mail Address. 

3). Date of Need for Signed Proclamation. 

4). Desired Presentation Venue (Mayor’s Office, City Studio, Site Visit, other). 

5). Draft Proclamation Text (including 3-6 Whereas Clauses and a Therefore Clause). 

B. Requests must be e-mailed to proclamations@cedarfalls.com at least 30 days prior to the 

desired proclamation date. Approval well in advance will allow the greatest flexibility for 

scheduling a video shoot or other special publishing arrangement. 

C. The city reserves the right to edit proclamations for clarity and brevity, and will normally 

2

Item 1.



CFD 1127.22:  Council Policy – Official City Proclamations CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 2 

consult with the submitter regarding any substantive changes. 

3. Proclamation Approval. 

A. Proclamation requests shall be considered for council approval under a single cover memo 

in the regular council meeting consent calendar. 

B. Proclamations shall not normally be read aloud during council meetings, in the interest of 

council meeting efficiency. 

4. Proclamation Publication. 

A. After approval by the City Council, the Mayor shall sign the final formal proclamation 

document under the city seal within a formal presentation folder. 

B. The Mayor shall promptly return the signed proclamation to the submitter, and will normally 

offer a photo opportunity in the Mayor’s Office, a site visit, social media broadcast, or other 

location and date/time as agreed upon by the submitter and Mayor. 

5. Emergency Proclamations exempted.  

A. As described in Iowa Code 372.14, the Mayor may govern the city by proclamation when a 

time of emergency has been determined to exist, within the limits imposed by City Code 

Section 16-133.   

B. Such proclamations shall be exempt from the procedures contained in this policy document.  

ADOPTED / AMENDED: 

12/19/22 

3

Item 1.



Parkland/Open Space 
Requirements

Overview of Current Practice
June 5, 2023

4

Item 1.



Council Referral

At the January 17th meeting, Council requested an 
overview of the City’s requirements for open space for 
new subdivisions. 

5

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Per the subdivision code, all subdivisions must meet the park and 
open space needs of the residents. 

• Two methods of meeting the requirement: 
1.Dedication and acceptance of public park land; and/or 
2.Reservation of private open space 

• Designated on plat as an outlot. 

• If private open space, must indicate responsible party for 
management and maintenance (typically a Homeowners 
Association)

6

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Current Practice: 

• Size – 1 to 5 acres to meet the local 
needs of the residents of the 
subdivision

• For size comparison:

• Overman Park: 1.7 acres

• Seerley Park: 1.7 acres 

• Lookout Park: 4 acres

• Holmes Park: 5 acres

• Greenhill Park: 5 acres Greenhill Park – includes ½ acre Place to 

Play (2019)

7

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Current Practice: 

• Private open space parcels often  
serve as means of stormwater control 
and are not usable as neighborhood 
open space. 

• Some are designed to serve both 
purposes. 

• Examples: 

• Senior Living:  Western Homes, Cedar 
Stone

• Hidden Pines Subdivision

• Wild Horse Subdivision

Western Homes – pond with trail and 

other amenities

8

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Subdivision Code also requires:

• Reservation of School Sites as noted in adopted plans

• Trails / Parks as noted in adopted plans

9

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Challenges with Current Practice: 

• No formula to determine how much space should be set aside to 
“meet the needs” of the residents of the subdivision 

• Negotiated during the subdivision review process based on size and 
location of the subdivision. 

• Comprehensive Plan is a guide.

• If land dedication is proposed, consultation with the Parks and 
Recreation Commission to determine if the land is suitable as public 
park space (size/location/topography)

• Examples: 
• West Fork Crossings (2021) – 2-acre park proposed

• Hidden Pines (2023) – small area of private open space next to stormwater

10

Item 1.



Legal Limitations

Home Builders Association of Greater Des Moines v. West Des 
Moines (2002). 

• Iowa Supreme Court held that the City’s park fee of $100 per 
acre was an illegal tax, since it was not compensation for a 
direct service to the developer for the benefit of the 
subdivision. Instead, it was a measure to raise revenue for 
public infrastructure and therefore illegal. 

• Caused many cities to review their ordinances regarding open 
space requirements, particularly payment of fees in lieu of 
dedication of parkland

11

Item 1.



Legal Limitations

Requirement for dedication of land
is lawful if it is related to and 
proportional to the needs caused 
by the development. 

• Beyond that, must pay fair 
compensation.

• Example: 14-acre park next to 
Aldrich Elementary School

School Campus & Parkland Planning Study (2009)

12

Item 1.



Subdivision Code Requirements

Guidance from Adopted Plans: 

• Cedar Falls Parks Plan – 1996

• Guidance is outdated

• Comprehensive Plan - 2012

• Defines different types and sizes of parks. 

• Neighborhood parks serve areas within ¼ to ½ mile walking 
distance

• School parks help meet neighborhood park needs

• Distribute parkland to provide equitable park service for all 
citizens

13

Item 1.



Service Coverage - Neighborhood 

Parks

• ¼ mile service area – in blue

• ½ mile service area – in pink

Note: growth areas in north, west, 

and southeast lack coverage

Comprehensive Plan

14

Item 1.



Zoning Code Requirements

Districts requiring open space at time of rezoning

• RP Planned Residence District – Master planned residential areas. 
Open space/parkland is negotiated at the time of rezoning. 

• Mixed Use (MU) Residential District 
• Intent: Master planned, self-supporting neighborhoods with an emphasis 

on the creation open spaces and amenities that enhance the quality of life 
of residents. 

• Requires min. of 10% of the development site set aside for open space
• Examples:

• Greenhill Village – Greenhill Park 
• Pinnacle Prairie - Parks and trails identified in the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan –

most park areas have yet to be developed, some trails built

Challenge: Master Plans often amended over time prior to platting

15

Item 1.



Pinnacle Prairie East Master Plan

16

Item 1.



Next Steps

Develop new Park & Public Lands Master Plan in FY25 & FY26 
that accounts for:

• Physical activities preferences.

• Accommodate Cedar Falls growth.

• Include current best practices on the type & amount of park 

space & recreational amenities.

• Identifies a specific park/open space dedication method or 

formula that can be applied to new development.

• Explore funding options to maintain our parks.

17

Item 1.



Downtown

Parking Permits

Finance & Business Operations

Committee Meeting

June 5, 2023

18

Item 1.



Why are we here discussing 
48-hour parking?

• Referral made by City Council to discuss current 48-hour 
parking restrictions in municipal lots for permit holders.

Will be presenting information on:

• Reasons for 48-hour parking.

• How 48-hour parking is enforced.

• Possible options.

19

Item 1.



Why 48-hour parking 
restriction?

• Concerns expressed by business owners and residents during 
parking studies about availability, turnover and accessibility of 
parking spaces due to vehicles that weren’t moving regularly. 

• Prevents long-term parking and storage of vehicles, trailers,  
RVs, etc. in municipal lots. 

20

Item 1.



Current process used by 
Public Safety Officers and 
Parking Attendants to enforce 
48-hour parking:

• Step 1)  Chalk the vehicle tires.

• Step 2)  Come back 48-hours later.

• Step 3)  If vehicle has not moved, issue a 48-hour citation.

• Step 4)  Adhere orange sticker on driver side window with date/time 
and reason it was marked.

• Step 5)  Come back again after another 24 hours.

• Step 6)  Adhere green sticker to front windshield on driver side and 
tow vehicle.

Vehicle generally parked for at least 72-96 hours before being towed. 

21

Item 1.



Are we looking for a solution 
to a problem that doesn’t 
exist?

Ordinance section establishing 48-hour limit in municipal lots 
was adopted on 10/7/2019.  Since adoption, there have been 
very few citations issued for 48-hour violations in downtown 
municipal lots.

TOTAL of 25 citations in over 3 years

22

Item 1.



Option 1:

No enforcement of 48-hour parking limit in downtown municipal lots for 
permit holders. (Not a good option based on issues noted previously.)

• PROS:
• Allows parking beyond 48 hours for residents, business owners and 

employees who have permits.
• CONS:

• Nothing to prevent using municipal lots as long-term storage, may 
create challenges for City to maintain lots, and issues may arise 
again.

• Inconsistent with 48-hour limit for on-street parking. City does not 
allow long-term unlimited public parking anywhere else.

• Reduces turnover of parking for customers, businesses and 
residents.

No examples found for other cities to allow long-term parking in 
municipal lots.

23

Item 1.



Option 2:

Continue to enforce 48-hour parking time limit in municipal lots 
regardless of parking permit status or residency.

• PROS:
• Consistent with 48-hour limit for on-street parking. 
• Provides tool and ability to remove vehicles, etc., that are not being 

moved regularly.
• Encourages turnover of parking for customers and residents.
• Aids regular maintenance of lots.
• Few issues or citations issued for this violation in municipal lots since 

adopted in 2019.
• CONS:

• Residents must move their vehicle once every 48 hours.
• No option for occasional long-term parking needs, i.e. vacations, 

business trips, etc.

24

Item 1.



Option 3:
Continue enforcing 48-hour limit for regular parking permit holders with an 
option to apply for temporary long-term parking when needed and pay an 
additional cost per day thru a separate application process.

• PROS:

• Extended parking option would accommodate residents & business 
owners when longer term parking is needed, i.e., business trips, vacations, 
etc.

• Additional cost would discourage number of long-term permits.

• Permit holders paying same amount get same time limits.

• CONS:

• Unable to prevent long-term permit holders from using municipal lots as 
long-term storage; potential issues may arise again.

• Additional cost for those needing long-term parking option.

• Inconsistent with 48-hour on-street parking limit.

• City does not provide long-term public parking option anywhere else.

• Additional work for City admin staff. 25

Item 1.



Staff Recommendation:

Option 2:
• Continue enforcing 48-hour parking limit in municipal 

lots for permit holders. 

• Issue one-time courtesy warning if vehicle has not 
received citation for this violation in the past.  

• Continue regular communications with Community Main 
Street.

• Increase awareness by adding/clarifying parking limit on 
parking permit web site. (already completed)

• Revise current parking ordinance for improved clarity 
and consistency. 

26

Item 1.



MOTION:  Direct staff to take appropriate action / 
prepare ordinance revisions to approve / 
implement Option ___.

QUESTIONS?

27

Item 1.



Cash Management
Report FY2024

FBO Committee
June 5, 2023

28

Item 2.



Objectives

• Review of investments and rates of return

• Review operating cash reserves and provide snapshot 
of financial position

• Capital expenditures

29

Item 2.



Investments

• Main Checking at Farmers State Bank

• City has three liquid money market accounts

• Certificate of Deposit investments

• Average rate of return 4.12% - FY23,  .85% -
FY22 and .37% - FY21

30

Item 2.



Managing 
Public 
Funds

Safety of 
Principal

Liquidity to 
Match 

Expected 
Liabilities

Reasonable 
Rate of 

Return or 
Yield 

Managing Public Funds

31

Item 2.



Cash Reserves

• Cash the most liquid asset, is vital to the daily 
operations of the City

• Three Financial Policies to hold cash:
• Meet the needs of daily transactions
• Protect against uncertainties
• Bond rating criteria

32

Item 2.



Cash Reserves

• City’s position is to maintain a fund balance between 
15% - 25% in the General Fund for cash flow and 
emergency purposes

• In FY2003, City Council directed staff to move towards 
upper end at 20-25% reserves

33

Item 2.



Cash Reserves

• City’s position to maintain a reserve balance between 
• 20-30% in the Refuse Fund 
• 65-75% in the Sewer Fund
• 20-30% in the Street Fund
• 10-20% in the Storm Water Fund
• Emergency Reserve $1.5 - $2 million

34

Item 2.



Cash Reserves

41,000,000

42,000,000

43,000,000

44,000,000

45,000,000

46,000,000

47,000,000

48,000,000

49,000,000

50,000,000

51,000,000

52,000,000

53,000,000

54,000,000

55,000,000

56,000,000

57,000,000

June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Projected Total Balance (FY24)   

Projected Month End Balance

35

Item 2.



Capital Expenditures

• Concerted effort to limit major capital expenditures to 
months when revenues are high; October/November & 
April/May (largest property tax receipts)

• Departments adhere to the scheduling process unless 
an emergency

• Departments have had to deal with supply chain 
issues in past 12-18 months

36

Item 2.



Capital Expenditures

• 33rd year for Vehicle Maintenance Program

• Departments are able to extend the useful life of 
vehicles longer

• Management will budget when the vehicles are close 
to failing

• Late fiscal year purchases 

37

Item 2.



Summary

• For FY2024 we will want to keep an eye on cash 
reserves

• Rollback and State Backfill (phased out FY29)
• National & local economies
• State Legislature action

• Motion to recommend the approval of the FY2024 
Cash Management Report

38

Item 2.



Questions?

39

Item 2.



40

Item 2.



41

Item 2.



42

Item 2.



43

Item 2.



44

Item 2.



45

Item 2.



46

Item 2.



47

Item 2.



48

Item 2.



49

Item 2.



50

Item 2.



51

Item 2.



52

Item 2.



53

Item 2.



54

Item 2.



55

Item 2.



56

Item 2.



57

Item 2.



58

Item 2.



59

Item 2.



60

Item 2.



61

Item 2.



62

Item 2.



63

Item 2.



64

Item 2.



65

Item 2.



66

Item 2.



67

Item 2.



68

Item 2.



69

Item 2.



70

Item 2.



71

Item 2.



72

Item 2.



73

Item 2.



74

Item 2.



75

Item 2.



76

Item 2.



77

Item 2.



78

Item 2.



79

Item 2.



80

Item 2.



81

Item 2.



82

Item 2.



83

Item 2.



84

Item 2.



85

Item 2.



86

Item 2.



87

Item 2.



88

Item 2.



89

Item 2.



90

Item 2.



91

Item 2.



92

Item 2.



93

Item 2.



94

Item 2.



95

Item 2.



96

Item 2.



97

Item 2.



98

Item 2.



99

Item 2.



100

Item 2.



101

Item 2.



102

Item 2.



103

Item 2.



104

Item 2.



105

Item 2.



106

Item 2.



107

Item 2.



108

Item 2.



109

Item 2.


	Top
	Item 1.	City Proclamation Policy
	CFD 1127.22 - Council Policy - Official City Proclamations

	Item 1.	Referral re open space requirements for subdivisions
	Parks - current practice 6.5.23 V3

	Item 1.	Parking permit downtown
	Committee 48-Hour Lot Presentation 06.05.2023 (JD & MDB final version)

	Item 2.	FY24 Cash Management Report
	Cash Management FY2024PP
	0505_001

	Bottom

